
To:   SGA   President   Michelle   Sherman   and   all   members   of   the   SGA  
 
From:   The   Public   Relations   Committee   of   the   SGA   Senate  
 
Subject:  Recommendation  regarding  behavior  from  the  Office  of  SGA  President  Michelle            
Sherman  
 

It  has  come  to  our  attention  through  numerous  complaints  and  conversations  with  SGA              
members  that  there  have  been  several  issues  regarding  the  Office  of  the  President  and  the                
Executive  Branch.  As  the  PR  Committee,  we  have  decided  to  look  into  these  claims  as  they                 
affect  the  student  perception  of  the  SGA.  In  an  effort  to  improve  our  image  with  the  student                  
body,  we  have  worked  to  address  these  issues  and  bring  them  up  before  the  full  Senate.  We  have                   
summarized   the   issues   as   follows:  
 

a. Lack   of   communication   with   the   SGA   
b. Lack   of   following   established   procedure  
c. Executive   overreach   regarding   the   inner   workings   of   the   Executive   Cabinet  

 
Lack   of   Communication:  
 
The  lack  of  communication  between  the  office  of  the  President  and  the  SGA  is  best  exemplified                 
by  the  appeal  submitted  to  Dr.  Phaiah  following  the  Oct  22,  2019  SGA  meeting.  No  one  in  the                   
Executive  branch,  Senate,  or  student  body  had  known  the  status  of  the  appeal  until  Dr.  Phaiah                 
gave  his  ruling  at  the  Senate  meeting  on  November  19th,  2019  (Appendix  A1).  The  Senate  had                 
not  received  a  copy  of  the  appeal  to  Dr.  Phaiah  and  only  received  his  ruling.  It  has  also  appeared                    
that  questions  regarding  the  status  of  the  appeal,  brought  up  at  Executive  Cabinet  meetings,  were                
disregarded   or   ignored.   This   has   been   confirmed   from   testimony   provided   by   the   CFO.  

 
This  lack  of  communication  is  further  exemplified  by  the  efforts  of  Dr.  Phaiah  to  hold  a                 
mediation  meeting  between  the  President  and  Vice  President  following  the  Oct  22,  2019  SGA               
Meeting.  According  to  Dr.  Phaiah  and  VP  Sobers,  everyone  had  agreed  upon  a  meeting  time                
(Appendix  A2).  This  meeting  was  then  cancelled  by  President  Sherman  and  no  follow-up              
meeting  or  attempt  to  reschedule  could  be  found  (Appendix  A5).  It  also  appears  that  Justice                
Aliser  also  attempted  to  hold  a  mediation  meeting  between  the  President  and  Vice  President,               
which,   to   our   knowledge,   never   occurred.  
 
 
 
 



Lack   of   Following   Established   Procedure:  
 
It  appears  that  established  procedure  has  not  been  followed  at  the  Executive  Cabinet  Meetings.               
At  the  11/25/2019  Executive  Cabinet  meeting  the  Vice  President  and  Chief  Justice  were              
excluded.  This  is  despite  the  fact  that,  according  to  Article  5.4.1  of  the  SGA  Constitution,  “ There                 
shall  be  an  Executive  Cabinet  composed  of  the  President,  the  Vice  President,  the  Chief  Financial                
Officer,  the  Student  Activities  Chair  Director,  the  Student  Activities  Technical  Director,  the             
Governmental  Affairs  Officer,  the  Webmaster,  and  any  other  officers  or  persons  prescribed  by              
the  President.  The  Executive  Cabinet  shall  advise  and  assist  the  President  in  their  duties  as  well                 
as  facilitate  cooperation  and  coordination  among  the  executive  agencies  and  executive  officers.”             
There  was  no  documented  explanation  or  approval  from  the  other  executive  cabinet  members              
regarding  this  change  in  established  procedure.  Considering  all  Executive  Cabinet  meetings  are             
open-door  and  all  students  are  welcome  to  attend,  it  is  concerning  that  members  of  the  Executive                 
Cabinet   were   explicitly   told   not   to   attend   (Appendix   A3).  

 
Executive   Overreach:  
 
Members  of  the  Executive  Cabinet  have  voiced  their  concern  regarding  potential  executive             
overreach  from  the  office  of  the  President.  One  notable  example  of  this  is  regarding  the  Financial                 
Committee  recommendation  regarding  the  status  of  affected  clubs  following  the  Oct  22,  2019              
SGA  Meeting.  The  CFO  was  then  sent  an  email  by  President  Sherman  regarding  the               
recommendation,  asking  about  who  requested  that  the  Finance  Committee  make  a            
recommendation  as  well  as  the  names  and  positions  of  who  else  was  involved  (Appendix  A4).                
There  has  not  been  established  precedent  requiring  any  committee  to  divulge  the  names  and               
positions   of   members   involved   with   making   a   recommendation   to   the   Senate.   

 
Another  example  of  potential  executive  overreach  is  regarding  the  NMT  Exploration  Day  Club              
Fair.  President  Sherman  both  helped  plan  and  run  the  club  fair.  However,  there  is  no  documented                 
support  that  either  the  Club  Advisory  Committee  or  the  Vice  President  were  contacted  in  regards                
to  this  event.  The  Vice  President  was  only  notified  the  day  before  this  event  by  Yesenia  Perez                  
Gonzalez,  the  Admission  Coordinator  for  NMT  (Appendix  A5).  It  is  established  procedure  that              
NMT  Club  Fairs  be  put  on  by  both  the  Vice  President  and  Club  Advisory  Committee.  In  the  case                   
of  the  NMT  Exploration  Day  Club  Fair  however,  there  is  no  record  of  contact  nor  was  there  an                   
explanation   given   for   why   this   change   was   made   to   established   precedent.   

 
 
 
 
 



Recommendation:  
 
It  is  our  hope  that  by  bringing  these  issues  to  light,  we  can  work  with  President  Sherman,  VP                   
Sobers,  and  any  other  relevant  parties  to  address  these  issues.  We  would  like  to  note  that  before                  
the  submission  of  this  document  to  the  SGA  senate,  we,  several  members  of  the  PR  Committee,                 
met  with  CFO  Quincy  Bradfield,  VP  Dallin  Sobers,  and  SGA  Advisor  Dr.  Phaiah.  Efforts  were                
made  to  meet  with  President  Sherman  prior  to  the  submission  of  this  recommendation  (Appendix               
A6).  However,  due  to  the  Thanksgiving  break,  this  was  not  possible;  we  apologize  for  this                
oversight   on   our   part.  
 
The  PR  Committee  recommends  the  following  steps  be  taken  to  address  the  issues  mentioned               
above:  

 
a. Increased  communication  between  departments  and  a  rescheduling  of  the  canceled           

mediation   meeting   with   Dr.   Phaiah.  
b. The  creation  of  a  set  of  Standard  Operating  Procedures  for  all  departments,  outlining  the               

actions  each  department  may  take  as  well  as  establishing  a  precedent  for  those  actions.               
These  Standard  Operating  Procedures  should  then  be  ratified  by  the  SGA  Senate  and              
made  available  on  the  SGA  website.  We  also  recommend  that  the  Standard  Operating              
Procedures   be   given   as   part   of   the   Senator   Handbook.  

c. See  part  b  above.  We  also  recommend  that  the  Judiciary  and  Legislative  Standards              
Committee  work  with  the  Executive  Cabinet  to  ensure  each  Executive  Officer  understand             
their   powers   and   responsibilities.  

 
It  is  important  to  remember  that  these  actions  are  only  a  recommendation  provided  by  the  PR                 
Committee  and  that  any  other  suggestions  are  welcome.  We  also  hope  to  establish  precedent               
regarding  issues  such  as  this  by  submitting  this  recommendation  in  place  of  pursuing  disciplinary               
action.  However,  should  these  problems  continue,  or  any  retaliatory  action  be  taken  against  those               
involved,  disciplinary  action  may  be  pursued  against  the  offending  party  as  outlined  by  Article  7                
of   the   NMTSGA   Constitution.  
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